ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON | N- STATE ENERGY
January 24, 2013
7:30 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Cick Bishop, Co-Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senat or G essel
Senat or Huggi ns

COW TTEE CALENDAR

ALASKA ENERGY AUTHORI TY OVERVI EW
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

SARA FI SHER- GOLD, Executive Director

Al aska Energy Authority

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided an overview of the Alaska Energy
Aut hority (AEA).

GENE THERRI AULT, Deputy Director

St at ewt de Energy Policy Devel opnent

Al aska Energy Authority

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided an overview of the Al aska Energy
Aut hority (AEA).

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -1- January 24, 2013



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

7: 30: 38 AM

CO- CHAIR CLICK BISHOP called the Senate Special Committee on In-
State Energy neeting to order at 7:30 a.m Present at the call
to order were Senators Mcciche, Egan, Welechowski, Co-Chair
Coghi Il , and Co- Chair Bi shop.

CO CHAIR COGHI LL said the commttee would | ook geographically at
Al aska's in-state energy issues. He explained that energy was
often divided between electrons: electricity transm ssion and
generation, or hydrocarbon based for hone heating and industri al
use. He said the conmttee's intent was to address regional
energy issues and end up with proper planning or provide policy
with a plan el enent.

ALASKA ENERGY AUTHORI TY OVERVI EW

7:33.13 AM

CO CHAI R BI SHOP announced the business before the committee was
to hear an overview of the Al aska Energy Authority's (AEA)
vari ous energy rel ated projects throughout the state.

7:34:21 AM

SARA FI SHER- GOLD, Executive Director, Al aska Energy Authority
(AEA), said the AEA mission was to reduce the cost of energy.
She said reduced energy cost was done in a variety of ways in
prograns as foll ows:

e Investing in Alaska's Energy Infrastructure.
« Diversifying Al aska's Energy Portfolio.

» Energy Pl anning and Policy.

e Technical and Comunity Assi stance.

7:36: 03 AM
M5. FISHER-GOLD said AEA' s infrastructure and |arge projects
were as follows:

Bradl ey Lake Hydro Project

e State had provided a capital contribution of 50
percent. The cost of the project was over $328
mllion to build.

* Produces about 10 percent of the Railbelt's
electricity.

e AEA-owned asset.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 2- January 24, 2013



e Low cost energy producer.

e The installed capacity is 120 negawatts and it
does provide 4.5 cents/ kWh power.

M5. FISHER-GOLD said there were outstanding bonds for the Bradley
Lake Project until 2021. She noted that one of the unique situations
on the Bradley Lake nodel was that the state invested 50 percent
upfront for the project and the wutilities would be obligated to
continue paying the state for an additional 20 years after 2021.

COCHAIR COGHI LL asked M. Fisher-Gold to explain where the
Bradl ey Lake Hydro Project was | ocat ed.

M5. FI SHER- GOLD answered that the Bradl ey Lake Hydro Project was
|ocated in the Honer area. She noted that the Homer Electric
Associ ation provided for the project's operations. She expl ai ned
that the operation was in the Kenai Peninsula area and provided
power for the entire Railbelt region up to Fairbanks.

CO- CHAIR BI SHOP asked Ms. Fisher-CGold to explain Bradley Lake's
power capability versus actual output. He noted that there was
talk on upgrading lines to maxi m ze the project’'s output.

M5. FISHER-GOLD responded that the installed capacity was the
120 negawatts and the energy produced was 10 percent of the
Rail belt's electricity. She explained that Bradl ey Lake's output
was 560 gi gawatt hours.

CO- CHAIR BISHOP asked to verify that Bradley Lake's current
maxi mum out put was 90 negawatts.

SENATOR M CCICHE replied that Bradley Lake's electrical output
becanme unstable at 90 negawatts.

M5. FISHER-GOLD responded that the installed capacity was
different from typical output levels. She noted AEA s Battle
Creek Project to divert additional water to increase Bradley
Lake's hydroel ectric power output.

7:39: 34 AM
CO-CHAIR COGH LL noted that Senator Gessel, Chairman for the
Senat e Resources Committee Chairman was i n attendance.

SENATOR M CCI CHE commented that the [Battle Creek Project] would

increase Bradley Lake's output by ten percent and bring the
useabl e capacity to approxi mately 99 negawatts.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 3- January 24, 2013



M5. FI SHER- GOLD expl ai ned that one of the unique situations with
the AEA owned projects was that nanagenent was done in
conjunction with the Railbelt utilities. She said a 1993 change
to the statutes allowed for the concept of maxinmum utility
control for the operation and managenent of AEA projects. She
noted that Bradl ey Lake was operated and nmanaged by the Bradley
Project Managenent Commttee (BPMC), a group nade up of nenbers
from|[Railbelt] utilities and AEA

She addressed additional infrastructure and |arge projects as
fol |l ows:

Al aska Intertie
e AEA-owned with no outstandi ng debt.
e Qperated by AEA and Railbelt utilities.
* Runs fromWIlow to Healy.

Susi t na- WAt ana Hydr o

* New pr oj ect W th an instal |l ed capacity
anticipated to be 600 negawatts, which would
provi de roughly 50 percent of the electricity in
t he Rail belt.

 SB 42 had authorized AEA to pursue licensing to
own and operate the project. This is the first
new project that AEA would own and operate since
the Bradl ey Lake Hydroel ectric Project.

She said AEA was created in 1976 to primarily own and operate
hydroel ectric projects. She explained that even though AEA
di vested certain projects, AEA would continue to own projects in
addition to pursuing the Susitna-Watana Hydro Project. She noted
that AEA built and owned the Four Dam Pool Project which served:
Kodi ak; the Copper Valley Region; and the Southeast Al aska
communities of Petersburg, Wangell, and Ketchi kan. She said the
utilities fornmed the Four Dam Pool Association and purchased the
projects in 2001. She noted that the joint action agency was
ultimately split up in to Kodiak owning the Terra Lake Project,
Copper Valley Electric Association owning the Solonon Gulch
Project, and Southeast Al aska Power Agency (SEAPA) owning the
Two- Dam Project of Swan Lake and Tyee Lake projects. She noted
t hat SEAPA owned the intertie that connected the Swan Lake and
Tyee Lake projects. She explained that the joint action agency
remai ned, but the owning utilities were all nunicipally owned
utilities in Southeast Al aska.

7:42:59 AM

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -4- January 24, 2013



M5. FISHER-GOLD noted that AEA had owned the Larsen Bay
Hydroel ectric Project and sold it two years ago to the city of
Larsen Bay.

She addressed a map that was titled: Alaska Energy Authority
Projects Under Construction Sunmer 2012. She expl ained that the
map provided a broad representation of the variety of AEA
prograns: Renewable Energy Fund Projects, AEA nmanaged Rural
System Upgrade Progranms, and Energy Efficiency Projects. She
noted that several of the AEA managed Energy Efficiency Projects
were from the Federal Stimulus Fund via the Energy Efficiency &
Conservation Block Grant (EECBG. She renmarked that AEA was not
just about a large hydro project or the Railbelt. She said AEA
had a broad portfolio of projects that inpacted the entire
st at e.

7:44. 07 AM

SENATOR M CCI CHE noted that AEA was a state agency that owned a
significant portfolio of energy projects. He asked what the
current overall value was for state-owned energy projects.

M5. FISHER-GOLD answered that AEA owned the Bradley Lake
Hydroel ectric Project and the Alaska Intertie. She stated that
the cost to build Bradley Lake was $328 million and the Intertie
was over $100 nillion. She noted that the projects were
depreciating in val ue.

SENATOR M CClI CHE asked about the smaller rural projects where
AEA had been involved and the state did not technically own, but
proj ect assistance was provided for funding and managenent.

M5. FISHER-GOLD responded that AEA had provided operationa

managenent and training services on behalf of small comunities.

She noted that sonme small communities do not have the technica

or managenent capabilities to build and operate projects. She
expl ai ned that AEA services include managing the payroll of the
| ocal workforce, providing construction nanagenent oversight,

and paying contractors for the wrk to be done. She said
rei mbursenment was received from the specific funding sources
that included federal funds via the Denali Conm ssion and the
state of Alaska. She noted that the state had extended AEA
funding to continue building Rural Power Systens Upgrade (RPSU)
projects in addition to bulk fuel projects. She sunmarized that
AEA did not technically own previously nentioned projects and
cited 1993 legislation that restricted AEA from owning new
projects. She explained that SB 42 was required in 2011 in order
to pursue the Susitna-Watana Hydroel ectric Project.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 5- January 24, 2013



GENE THERRI AULT, Deputy Director, Statewide Energy Policy
Devel opnent, Al aska Energy Authority, said even though AEA owned
Bradl ey Lake and Al aska Intertie, the policy was AEA would work
with local utilities and pass off as nmuch day to day control to
t hem

7:46: 59 AM
MS. FI SHER- GOLD addressed AEA prograns for renewable energy as
fol | ows:

Renewabl e Energy Fund ( REF)

» State Goal: 50 percent renewable electricity by
2025.

« HB 152 (2008) authorized AEA to manage program
reaut horized in 2012 for another ten years.

e 227 projects approved totaling $202 m | lion.

* More t han 60 proj ects currently under
constructi on.

* Round 6 recomrendations projects. AEA provides
recommendations in rounds on an annual basis.

Round 6 recomendations information wll be
provided to legislature today. AEA provides
anal ysis detail of all projects that have cone
in. The list is developed in funding |evels,
there is a $25 million funding level and a $50
mllion funding level. An in-total recomended

projects fund of roughly $56 million for 60
projects that will be recommended

« By 2016, 12.3 mllion gallons of diesel and
nat ur al gas equi val ent will be di spl aced
annual ly. Results: $45 million in annual savings.

CO CHAIR COGHI LL asked if the Round 6 recomendation would be
submtted as a report to the | egislature.

M5. FISHER-GOLD answered yes. She said the legislation that
aut hori zed the renewabl e energy fund was a uni que recomendati on
program She revealed that AEA was not appropriated noney to
i ssue grants. She explained that AEA was required to go through
a solicitation process every year and provide the |egislation
with a ranked projects list. She said the |egislature determ ned
how far down the list to fund.

7:49:19 AM

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 6- January 24, 2013



M5. FISHER-GOLD addressed AEA prograns for enmerging energy
technol ogy as foll ows:

Emer gi ng Energy Technol ogy Fund (EETF)

« SB 220 (2010) created fund. Senator W el echowski
was the Co-Chair of the Senate Resources
Conmittee at the tinme that hel ped usher through
that |egislation.

 The key difference wth REF, EETF does provide
AEA with the funds to actually issue the grants.
Once AEA goes through the process, the grants are
issued. AEA is required to conform to a very
detailed regulatory process in order to get the
proj ects recommended and funds grant ed.

e Through Denali Comm ssion mtching grant, $8.9
mllion available. It was a 50/50 match between
state funds and federal dollars.

 First round, 16 projects selected for funding

(2012).
e Priority for the funds was for Al aska busi nesses,
utilities or nonprofit, and tribal or loca

governments for energing technologies. AEA was
| ooking for denonstration projects that could be
denonstrated and comrercially viable wthin 5
years.

CO CHAIR COGHI LL addressed EETF projects and explained that the
conmttee's intent was to maintain a regional view He asked if
the energing technologies generally fell into the nore rural
ar eas.

MS. FI SHER-GOLD responded that the EETF projects were statew de
and sonme had a rural perspective. She noted that one of the
grantees was [Hatch and WIlians Advanced Engineering]; a
conpany that was developing a flywheel for a w nd-diesel hybrid
system that would help to regulate the wi nd powder comng into a
di esel system She explained that the w nd-diesel system would
have an application in rural Al aska.

She noted that the Altaeros Energies Helium Balloon Wnd Turbine
as an EETF grantee. She said AEA had funded a broad variety of
projects: hydrokinetic, diesel generator energy efficiency,
power and storage capabilities, and bionass heat punps. She
noted that EETF was not focused solely on renewabl e energy. She
expl ai ned that hydrocarbon and fossil fuels based projects were
also eligible for the program

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -7- January 24, 2013



CO CHAIR COGHILL stated that the conmttee would be | ooking at
energing technologies, especially for smaller comunities. He
said he was interested in seeing what applicants energed and
fell out of the vetting process. He cited an exanple that three
or nore in-river hydrokinetic variations existed.

7:53: 03 AM

MR. THERRI AULT explained that EETF projects were driven by
econonmcs. He cited an exanple of a technology that produced
power at 20 cents per kilowatt-hour mght not nmake sense in
Anchorage, but would in a rural setting when conpeting power
cost was 50 cents per Kkilowatt-hour. He explained that the
program was not rural-targeted, but economcs often dictated
that rural applications made the nost sense.

CO CHAIR COGHI LL said the reason he brought up the rural aspect
was due to the commttee's focus on geographic and economc
regions. He explained that the commttee would be |ooking for
ways to help regions benefit froman energy policy strategy.

M5. FI SHER- GOLD stated that AEA had an EETF partnership with the
Al aska Center for Energy & Power (ACEP) at the University of
Al aska- Fai rbanks (UAF). She explained that ACEP assisted AEA in
managi ng the EETF program via data collection and technol ogy
analysis. She said when legislation was created for AEA to
exam ne prograns for its energy portfolio, a gap existed between
research and devel opnent at the university | evel and
comerci alized technology. She noted that EETF was created to
devel op denonstration projects in order to broaden AEA' s
portfolio of options in Al aska.

CO CHAIR COGHI LL asked if ACEP would assist AEA in review ng the
potential EETF applicants.

7:56: 09 AM
MS. FI SHER- GOLD answer ed yes.

She addressed AEA Prograns as foll ows:

Energy Statistics

e Summary and analysis of electricity generation
and use across Al aska.

e Annual report for the last three years. Prior
updates were only done every five to ten years.

e Provides a baseline to neasure how AEA was doi ng
with its goals. One goal was passed via HB 306

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 8- January 24, 2013



regarding the 50 percent renewabl e energy
electricity by 2025. The other one that cones
into AEA's Efficiency and Conservation Prograns
is inproving efficiency by 15 percent by 2020.
AEA has a nethodology through its statistics
collection to neasure how AEA was neeting the
energy efficiency goal.

Efficiency and Conservation

o State Goal: inprove efficiency 15 percent by
2020. AEA works in partnership with the Al aska
Housi ng Finance Corporation (AHFC) to recommend
and put forth residential prograns that assist
AEA in attaining the efficiency goal.

 AEA's focus is on comrercial buildings, rural
public buildings, i ndustri al facilities and
electrical efficiency in the diesel systens
installed in rural Al aska.

» Statew de outreach and educati on.

e Support for mul ti - st akehol der group, Al aska
Ener gy Partnership.

« Coordination between State agenci es.
e Al aska Comercial Energy Audit Program
* Village Energy Efficiency Program

7:57:42 AM
CO- CHAI R Bi shop recognized that Senator Huggins was present at
the conm ttee neeting.

SENATOR M CCICHE stated that the committee's focus was on a
statewi de energy plan for both urban and rural areas. He noted
AEA's goals relating to renewable energy, commercial viability,
and inproving efficiency. He asked if there was an independent
cl earing-house to verify where the state was in neeting its
ener gy goal s.

MR. THERRI AULT answered that AEA was the clearing-house. He said
AEA followed the policy that was established by the |egislature
and the administration. He stated that HB 306 and SB 220 were
2010 bills that established a lot of the state's energy policy
direction. He said the enpowering authority was provided to
i npl enent the energy policy. He said it was his responsibility
to make sure AEA was inplenenting policy and achieving the set
goals for programs. He stated that he would be the point person
for the conmttee to contact to track down specific information.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 9- January 24, 2013



M5. FISHER-GOLD explained that AEA was working on an "energy
cheat sheet"” that showed the AHFC and AEA energy prograns. She
noted that the Al aska Industrial Devel opnent & Export Authority
(AIDEA) had a new program the Sustainable Energy Transm ssion
and Supply Devel opnment Fund (SETS). She explained that SETS
would play a significant role in financing energy projects in
t he future.

CO CHAIR COGHI LL addressed the difference between industrial
base electricity and industrial base hydrocarbons.

M5. FISHER-GOLD stated that AEA had a high level statistica
overview for statewi de electricity.

SENATOR W ELECHOAMSKI  asked if AEA had a |Ilist of state
expenditures for energy projects over the last 20 to 30 years.

M5. FI SHER-GOLD answered that a ten year list of AEA funded and
constructed projects could be provided. She said she would
provide the <commttee wth a report from the Ofice of
Managenent and Budget (OVB) on total funding for energy prograns
beyond what AEA enconpassed.

8:03: 24 AM
V. FI SHER- GOLD addressed Community  Concept-N ghtnute as
fol | ows:

Bringi ng Toget her Many Partners
 Partnerships: AEA, Al aska Village El ectric
Cooperative (AVEQ) , Associ ation of Village
Counci | Presidents ( AVCP) - Housi ng, Ni ght mut e,
Denali Comm ssion, Rural CAP and Al aska Buil ding
Sci ence Net wor k.
 Conprehensive assessnent of the comunity's
ener gy need.
* Successes:
= Lighting and weat heri zati on
upgrades in 13 comunity buildings
and 4 teacher housing units.
= 59 percent energy savings.
= Average building went from two to
four Star energy rating.
= Average building fuel consunption
went from 961 gallons/year to 423
gal | ons/ year.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -10- January 24, 2013



M5. FISHER-GOLD explained that AEA was able to go into
communities and provide a conprehensive review of their energy
needs with their Village Energy Efficiency Program (VEEP). She
said VEED allowed AEA to address community facilities, lighting
retrofits, and upgrades. She noted that VEEP was particularly
effective in high cost rural communities where 60 cent per
kil owatt-hour was not unknown.

CO CHAIR COGHILL asked if reporting would conme through AHFC or
AEA.

MS. FI SHER- GOLD answered that the VEEP report would cone through
AEA.

CO CHAIR COGHI LL asked if information was available on specific
energy efficiency results.

MS. FI SHER- GOLD answer ed yes.

CO CHAIR COGHI LL stated that the commttee would address energy
conservation, new energy technology, as well as the use of oil
or gas.

M5. FISHER-GOLD replied that energy efficiency was AEA' s top
priority.

COCHAIR COGH LL comented that his Fairbanks constituents
addressed the city's inproved energy efficiency and their
consternation over receiving higher utility rates afterwards.

8. 06: 54 AM

CO- CHAIR BI SHOP asked M. Therriault to address the N ghtnute
Project. He inquired if it made any difference what hydrocarbon
was used as fuel. He noted that efficiency was the key and
cutting the fuel use by 59 percent was a great outcone.

MR. THERRI AULT replied that AEA' s authority directive was to
| oner the cost of energy for Al askans. He explained that the
directive was not just to lower per wunit price, but to |ower
peopl e's average energy bill.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked what happened to N ghtrnmute's fuel
bills.

COCHAIR COGH LL inquired if the 59 percent savings was
attributed specifically to N ghtnute.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -11- January 24, 2013



SENATOR W ELECHOWMWBKI asked if AEA had a nunmber on what the
kil owatt-hour or diesel cost difference was.

M5. FISHER-GOLD responded that she did not have a specific
nunber on the energy cost difference. She noted that the
el ectrical rates were 53 cents per kilowatt-hour.

COCHAIR COGHI LL commented on N ghtnute and addressed the
chal l enges from the Power Cost Equalization (PCE) program He
explained that PCE was directed towards residential use and
busi nesses were left out. He asked if businesses would be
i ncluded within the conservati on neasures.

8. 08: 46 AM

M5. FISHER-GOLD answered that AEA was working on increased
funding and financing for comrercial efficiency upgrades. She
said the Al aska Departnment of Conmerce, Conmunity, and Econom c
Devel opnent (DCCED) offered business entities a |oan program for
alternative energy and energy efficiency. She noted that the PCE
Program did not cover comrercial facilities. She explained that
t he Renewabl e Energy Program would inpact an entire conmunity's
di spl acenent of diesel fuel and not just the 33 percent that
were eligible for the PCE Program

COCHAIR COGHI LL comrented that entrepreneurs should not be
di scouraged in comunities. He explained that residential hones
may realize |ower costs, but enterprising businesses were vital
to a community.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked what Ms. Fisher-Gold' s thoughts were
on expanding the PCE Program to include businesses in rural
Al aska.

M5. FISHER-GOLD replied that legislation was introduced in the
House to address the PCE Program for businesses. She said AEA
woul d provide fiscal inpact analysis when the bill was heard.
She explained that she did not have a position on whether a
comerci al business should be included in the PCE Program She
said a small anount of commercial businesses were included in
the PCE Program in 1999, but were renoved during the same year.
She explained that the PCE Program was a $40 mllion program
that would require additional funding if comercial custoners
were added. She noted that schools were not included in the PCE
Program

8:11: 35 AM

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -12- January 24, 2013



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if Ms. Fisher-Gold had a sense of the
cost for including schools and busi nesses.

MS. FI SHER- GOLD answered that AEA had not conpleted the analysis
and noted that the House bill had not been schedul ed. She said
the AEA report would address the current costs and estimate the
comer ci al i npact.

VR. THERRI AULT responded that AEA's report would allow
| egislators to consider the fiscal inpact from adding entities
to the PCE Program He noted that attention would have to be
given to assure that the PCE endowrent would continue to cover
resi dential demand.

COCHAIR COGH LL commented that the policy call on PCE
hi ghl i ght ed t he chal | enges for busi nesses in smal | er
communities. He said it was inportant for the commttee to
continue looking at ways to assist businesses, especially in
regi onal areas with energy supply issues.

8:13: 07 AM

MR. THERRI AULT addressed Senator Coghill's statenent that
residents in his district were encouraged to conserve energy and
rewarded with higher electricity rates. He noted that increased
fuel costs may have had an inpact on rates during Fairbank's
energy conservation. He expl ained that reduced consunption would
force a utility to spread its fixed costs on fewer kilowatts

but the increase in fixed cost per unit of energy would be
m ni mal

He addressed Senator Welechowski's question on N ghtnmute's
i npact on fuel consunption. He said the amount of fuel that each
residence used was cut dramatically. He explained that the use
of power was probably reduced, but the cost per kilowatt-hour
may have gone up. He stated that the overall annual energy bil
went down.

He said AEA was addressing loans and prograns to assist
busi nesses. He noted that the state faced added risk in
providing loans to snaller busi nesses that may decl are
bankr upt cy.

He said AEA was not seeing the desired program activity |evels
from schools. He explained that a program existed for
i ncentivizing schools to take on energy efficiency neasures. He
said lower program activity may be attributed to schoo
districts being geared towards a Capital Inprovenent Project

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -13- January 24, 2013



(CIP) request process. He stated that AEA would try to figure
out ways to renove barriers and reshape prograns to increase
participation | evels that policy makers had hoped for.

CO-CHAIR BISHOP asked if ~consideration should be given to
centralizing energy loans from a one-stop-shop. He inquired if
the state was doing a good enough job in educating school
districts that funds were avail abl e outside of the Cl P request.

MR. THERRI AULT answered that he addressed energy prograns wth
Comm ssioner Hanley from the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent .

8.17.:04 AM

M5. FISHER-GOLD noted that M. Therriault's role was to address
issues and make sure AEA was able to effectively deliver
prograns to its custoners. She noted that AEA continued to
review prograns and find ways to inprove.

She explained that AEA's Power Project Fund (PPF) was as
fol | ows:

e Loans to upgrade or develop small-scale electric
power facilities.

e Includes bulk fuel storage, transm ssion and
di stribution, waste energy, energy conservation,
ener gy ef ficiency and alternative ener gy
facilities and equi pnent.

e State assistance for a project nore than $5
mllion requires Legislative approval .

e Low interest rates.
e $42 mllion in PPF (half in application process).
» Chena Hot Springs geothermal power plant.

She said PPF had been under-utilized in the past due to utility
cooperatives having alternate funding sources, but noted recent
participation had increased. She explained that PPF required
| egi sl ative approval for a project that had state involvenment or
assistance of nore than $5 million. She noted that AEA would
address the application process to provide a wuser-friendly
format that in turn provided AEA with the proper information to
eval uat e proj ects.

She addressed AEA' s Rural Energy Prograns as foll ows:

Bul k Fuel and Rural Power Systens Upgrades

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -14- January 24, 2013



* Help wutilities inprove efficiency, safety and
reliability of power systens.

e Completed $304 million in rural bulk fuel and
rural power system upgrade projects since 2000
in partnership with Denali Conm ssion

* Thirteen projects under construction next year.

e Circuit rider t echni cal assi st ance in 53
comunities (FY 12).

Trai ni ng and Techni cal Assi stance
e Training for power plant operators, advanced
power plant, bulk fuel, electric utility manager,
Power Cost Equalizati on.
* Energy specialists assisted 40+ communities to
advance to project-ready status.

M5. FISHER-GOLD stated that AEA had a hands-on approach
when assisting rural communities in building energy
infrastructures. She noted that AEA invested a significant
amount of tine to nmake sure rural communities were trained.
She said AEA worked with the Al aska Departnent of Labor and
Wor kf orce Devel opnent to send individuals to power plant
training at AVTEC-Alaska's Institute of Technology. She
expl ained that PCE training was provided for utility clerks
to assist in accurately expediting reports and nonthly
paynents. She noted that AEA received funding for two new
energy specialists to provide rural communities wth
techni cal assistance for energy grant applications.

8:20:45 AM
She explained the Rural Energy-Power Cost Equalization (PCE) as
foll ows:

e Provide economic assistance in rural Al aska where
electrical rates can be three to four times
hi gher than in urban Al aska.

* Available to community facilities and residenti al

cust oners.
* Reqgul atory Conm ssion of Alaska (RCA) sets rates,
cal cul ati ons based on use, costs and

ef ficienci es.

e Approximately 77,341 people Ilive in the 183
participating comunities (FY 11).

e PCE paynents at 100 percent totaling $39.5
mllion (FY 12).

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 15- January 24, 2013



e $788 mllion PCE Endownrent .

MS. FI SHER- GOLD expl ai ned that the PCE Program s endowrent
funding was based upon a nonthly market value average over
a three year period. She noted that the progran s endownent
received a $400 million appropriation in 2011 and the
appropriation was working its way through the three year
average. She said the program would realize a significant
increase for the wupcoming fiscal year wth the 2011
appropriation being fully realized in 2016.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI noted that friends from Fai rbanks had asked
if PCE funds m ght be expanded to include energy cost assistance
for interior areas |ike Fairbanks.

M5. FI SHER- GOLD answered that there had been |egislation in past
years for Fairbanks to receive PCE funds. She noted that any
| egislation would require AEA to provide cost information if PCE
funds were considered for nore communities. She explained that
eligibility for PCE was based upon community size and 1984 fuel
usage. She noted that PCE was not an expandabl e program w thout
| egi slation. She noted that Fairbanks was paying 22 cents per
kil owatt-hour and sonme PCE comunities were paying less than
Fai r banks. She explained that sone of the PCE communities had
14.5 cents per kilowatt-hour floors that paid up to 95 percent
of the first 500 kilowatt-hours. She said based upon the PCE
program formula, sone PCE conmmunities could be paying 15 to 16
cents per kilowatt-hour for 30 percent of the total Kkilowatt-
hour s produced.

8:24:03 AM
She addressed AEA's Supporting Regional Sol uti ons- Regi ona
Energy Planning as foll ows:

* Energy Pathways | ed to regional planning.
* Address unique challenges while capitalizing on
regi onal resources.

* Locally driven and community-vetted blueprint for
sustainability.

« (bjective to provi de specific, actionabl e
recommendat i ons.

* Includes el ectric, heat and transportation
ener gy.

* Previous plans: Railbelt Integrated Resources
Pl an and Sout heast | ntegrated Resources Plan.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -16- January 24, 2013



M5. FISHER-GOLD said the Energy Pathways Plan was put
forward in 2008 by Steve Haagenson, AEA' s fornmer Executive
Director. She said the plan was conpleted in 2010 and noted
that AEA was working on the further developnent to provide
communities with an inventory of what was available to
reduce the cost of energy. She said energy planning would
be regionally lead and locally driven.

8:25:24 AM
She addressed AEA's Supporting Regional Sol uti ons-Lessons
Learned: Buil ding Bl ocks of Energy, as follows:

« \What keeps the lights on? Is this a safe and
ef ficient source of power:

« Can renewabl e energy sources be integrated?
* |Is there potential for econom c devel opnent?

She explained that AEA reviewed energy sources and noted
that rural Al aska was often diesel based. She said smaller
power systens eval uations were nmade in addition to ensuring
system safety and efficiency. She noted that AEA |ooked at
renewabl e energy integration as well as energy rate inpact
on econom ¢ devel oprent.

She addressed Supporting Regional Solutions, Five-Step Process
to Devel oping a Plan, as foll ows:

1. Prelimnary pl anni ng and st akehol der' s
i dentification.

2. Resource inventory assessnent/data anal ysis.

3. Devel op and revi ew draft ener gy pl an
alternatives

4. Solicit comments on draft.

5. Final Docunent.

She noted that in Step 4, the regional |eaders in the plan
were solicited for coments. She said AEA provided
assi stance that was specific to projects or the technol ogy
t hat was sought out.

She identified an AEA map on the Al aska Regional Energy PIan.
She explained that the map roughly followed the Alaska Native
Cor porations' boundaries. She noted that regional planning was
not limted to boundaries and shared resource opportunities were
sought out.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -17- January 24, 2013



CO- CHAIR BISHOP commented that trusting |ocal know edge for
pl anni ng was positive.

MS. FISHER- GOLD addressed Supporting Regional Solutions-Calista
Regi on as foll ows:

Uni queness:
e Large region with largest population, including
56 vill ages.
* High energy and transportation costs.

Resour ces:
* Wnd in the coastal areas.
e Exploring feasibility of hydropower at Chi kum nuk
Lake.
e Community clusters: brings potential for energy
interties.

She said the Calista Region plan was one of the first plans
that AEA initiated beyond the Southeast Integrated Resource
Plan. She noted that the Nuvista Light & Power group would
be involved with the Chi kum nuk Hydroelectric & Alternative
Energy Project. She explained the comunity clusters for
pot enti al ener gy interties i ncl uded: Tooksook
Bay/ Tununak/ Ni ght mut e, Al akanuk/ Emmonak, and St.
Mary' s/ Mountain Village/Pilot Station. She said the Calista
Region was | ooking at the comunity clusters beyond energy
infrastructure and noted school facilities as an exanple
that could benefit froma |arger region.

8:29:53 AM
She addressed the Current Regional Plan Contracts as foll ows:
« Ahtna Regi on: Copper Val | ey Devel opnent
Associ ati on.
« Al eut Regi on: Sout hwest Al aska Muni ci pal

Conf erence ( SVWAMC).
e Bering Straits Region: Bering Straits Devel opnent
Counci | .

e Bristol Bay Region: SWAMC.

* Calista Region: Nuvi sta  Light and Electric
Cooper ati ve.

* NANA Region: Northwest Arctic Borough Economc
Devel opnent Commi ssi on.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 18- January 24, 2013



e Doyon Region: Direct grant to Tanana Chiefs
Conference fromthe Denali Conm ssion

 Wrrking with Chugach, Kokiak and Arctic Slope
Regi ons.

M5. FI SHER- GOLD sai d AEA had been hol di ng Regi onal Pl anni ng
Group neetings to nmake sure that the regional planners
could get together and | ook at sonme of the roadbl ocks. She
noted that AEA was primarily trying to work wth the
[ Depart ment of Conmmer ce, Communi ty, and Econom ¢
Devel opnent's] Al aska Regional Developnment Organizations
(ARDOR). She explained that ARDOR enconpassed regional
| eaders with econom c devel opnent roles and provided a good
segue for regional planning inpact on econonm c devel opnent
efforts.

8:31:12 AM
She addressed Supporting Regional Solutions-Ahtna Region as
fol | ows:

Uni queness:
e 17 comunities on the road system
» Federal |and ownership.
« Large seasonal | oad grow h.

* Village corporations nerged with Ahtna Regional
Corporation to formon | and owner.

Resour ces:
* Bi onmass.
* Hydropower.

e Interties and transm ssi on.

She explained that the Ahtna Regional Corporation's focus
was on biomass and noted that the region's potential to
connect with the Rail belt Region.

She addressed Energy Policy Developnent and Coordination as
fol |l ows:

e Deputy Director for Statewide Energy Policy
Devel opnent .

» Coordination of energy plans on statew de |evel.
e Coordinate nulti-agency efforts.

e Serve a | ead on Al aska' s ener gy policy
devel opment .

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -19- January 24, 2013



* Individual project analysis and vetting.
e Transm ssi on pl anni ng.
* Working with Al DEA on LNG trucking.

M5. FISHER-GOLD stated that M. Therriault would provide the
commttee wth i nformation on policy devel opnent and
coor di nati on.

MR. THERRI AULT said legislation had been introduced in the
Senate regarding access and the issue pertained to renoving
physi cal inpedinents for energy users. He explained that access
to biomass was a key issue and noted Al aska's trenendous bionmass
resources. He revealed that existing state statutes with regards
to biomass access were geared towards harvesting tinber for
di mensi onal |unmber or other use. He said the desire for bionass
access as an energy source may facilitate change in regul ations
and statutes. He explained that a clear policy call was required
from the legislature to assure that Al askans had access to
bi omass as an energy source.

He said there was an issue with traditional access across |ands.
He said an exanple would be finding a potential hydro spot for
devel opnent and addressi ng whet her the power could be wielded to
its possible consunmers. He stated that consideration would have
to be given to allow for crossing state lands or |egislatively
desi gnat ed ar eas.

8:35:10 AM

He addressed the policy to increase energy efficiency by 15
percent by the year 2020. He said AEA had to work in-house to
determ ne how attaining the efficiency goal would be neasured

He noted that a report was delivered to the |legislature
regarding AEA's  proposal on efficiency neasurenent and
departnmental coordination in neasuring whether the goal was
bei ng achieved. He said AEA's goal was to consistently provide
enpi ri cal data that showed whether funded prograns were
achieving their policy goals.

He referred to the "disconnect” to get school districts to fully
understand how to get access to funded progranms. He noted that
schools would have an inpact on neasurable energy efficiency
gains in governnment owned infrastructure. He said AEA s intent
was to include schools into a neasureable matrix to nonitor goa
achi evenent .

He addressed the 2025 goal for 50 percent of the state's
el ectrical needs to be supplied by alternative and renewable

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 20- January 24, 2013



energy sources. He said AEA believed the state would reach its
goal if current projects were ultimtely deployed. He noted that
Al aska's electrical load was Railbelt focused and success was
| argel y dependent on the Susitna-Wtana project.

8:37.:47 AM

MR. THERRI AULT noted that the state's blessing and curse was its
vast array of energy alternatives. He disclosed that an AEA team
had been assenbled to assist the legislature in the vetting
proj ects and proposals.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if Alaska was better off pursuing
| ocalized and regional energy project or running transm ssion
lines throughout the state from the Susitna-Watana Hydro
project. He asked how w despread an energy project's delivery
pl an shoul d be.

8:40: 17 AM

M5. FISHER-GOLD replied that Alaska's challenge was its great
di stances Dbetween resources and load. She explained that
building a transmission line was not always the answer to
reduci ng energy cost. She said there was a cost associated with
building a transm ssion system in addition to making sure that
t he devel oped energy generation was cheaper than the intended
delivery location's existing alternatives.

MR. THERRIAULT said the state had an energy plan that was
established by the legislature through legislation that set
goals and prograns to achieve the goals. He explained that
funding was provided to nake sure the progranms were noving
forward to achieve the goals. He noted that one size did not fit
all and addressed the Energy Pathways Plan for regionalized
planning efforts. He explained that the concept to deliver
energy across a large area was a challenge due to geographic
renmot eness and | oad paraneters. He said a copper wire could be
stretched over a large area, but very |ow demand could result in
line delivery losses that equal or exceed the intended | oad
coverage. He said AEA intended to work wi th geographic areas to
econom cal |y assess what nade the npbst sense.

8:43:56 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI i nquired what Al aska would | ook like in 50
years. He asked if a village's energy would be supplied by their
wind farm or solar panels, statewde transmssion |ines, or
regional hubs that supplied power in a geographical area. He
explained that a 50 year energy outlook was a critical exercise

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -21- January 24, 2013



for the comittee and AEA to consider due to the Ilarge
investnments in energy projects.

MR. THERRI AULT responded that the investnents being made would
bring about less fluctuation in the price of power due to the
focus on alternative and renewabl e energies. He noted that there
were two netrics for users of power: cost and certainty. He said
a business considering an investnent would have to estimte
their power costs for nultiple years. He explained that the
power cost mght not be as |low as a business may want, but a
busi ness plan could be built around how the cost could be net.

8:45:51 AM
M5. FI SHER- GOLD addressed AEA's Active Energy Projects regarding
funding for various prograns and the FY14 Budget Summary.

CO-CHAIR BI SHOP thanked Ms. Fisher-Gold and M. Therriault for
t heir AEA presentation.

8.:47.:41 AM

There being no further business to cone before the Senate
Special Committee on In-State Energy, Co-Chair Bishop adjourned
the neeting at 8:47 a. m

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -22- January 24, 2013



